
         

 

 

COCO PALMS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

& PUBLIC HEARING 
JUNE 24, 2024 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 

 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
8785 SW 165th Avenue, Suite 200 

Miami, FL 33193 
 

786.313.3661 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



   
 AGENDA 

COCO PALMS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Artesa Clubhouse  

11690 SW 248th Street  
Homestead, FL 33032 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 
June 24, 2024 

6:30 p.m. 
 

 
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication...........................................................................................................................Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. March 25, 2024 Regular Board Meeting……………………………………………………….Page 2 

G. Public Hearing 

1. Proof of Publication…………………………………………………………………………….Page 5 

2. Receive Public Comments on Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Final Budget 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2024-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Final Budget………...Page 6 

H. Old Business 

I. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2024-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Meeting Schedule…..Page 14 

J. Administrative & Operational Matters 

K. Board Member & Staff Closing Comments 

L. Adjourn 



Page 1



COCO PALMS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

MARCH 25, 2024 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
District Manager Armando Silva called the March 25, 2024, Regular Board Meeting of the Coco 
Palms Community Development District (the “District”) to order at 6:35 p.m. in the Artesa 
Clubhouse located at 11690 SW 248th Street, Homestead, Florida 33032. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Armando Silva presented proof of publication that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the Miami Daily Business Review on October 23, 2023, as legally required. 
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM  
 
Armando Silva determined that the attendance of the following Board Members constituted a 
quorum and it was in order to proceed with the meeting: Chairperson Corissa Nguyen, Vice 
Chairperson Seth Patterson and Supervisors Charles Handal and Nilka Gomez. 
 
Staff in attendance included: District Manager Armando Silva of Special District Services, Inc.; 
District Counsel Gregory George of Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A.. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  October 12, 2023, Special Board Meeting 
 
Mr. Silva presented the October 12, 2023, Special Board Meeting minutes and asked if there were 
any comments and/or changes. There being no comments or changes, a motion was made by Mr. 
Handal, seconded by Ms. Gomez and unanimously passed approving the October 12, 2023, Special 
Board Meeting minutes, as presented. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.  Staff Report, as Required 
 
There was no staff report at this time.  
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2024-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Proposed 
Budget 

 
Mr. Silva presented Resolution No. 2024-01, entitled: 

Page 2



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-01 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COCO 
PALMS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING A 
PROPOSED BUDGET AND NON-AD VALOREM SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Mr. Silva provided an explanation for the document and explained that the proposed 2024/2025 fiscal 
year budget would be balanced by designating a carryover of approximately $22,200 from the 
projected fund balance as of September 30, 2023. Mr. Silva advised that since the overall proposed 
assessments were not increasing in the fiscal year 2024/2025, letters to the residents would not be 
required. Furthermore, Mr. Silva stated as part of Resolution No. 2024-01, the Board must set a date 
for the public hearing to adopt the fiscal year 2024/2025 final budget and assessment roll. A 
discussion ensued after which: 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Gomez, seconded by Ms. Nguyen and unanimously passed to approve 
and adopt Resolution No. 2024-01, as presented, setting the public hearing to adopt the fiscal year 
2024/2025 final budget and assessments for June 24, 2024, at 6:30 p.m. in the Artesa Clubhouse 
located at 11690 SW 248th Street, Homestead, Florida 33032; and further authorizes 
publication/notice of the budget public hearing, as required by law. 
 

2. Discussion Regarding Ethics Training 
 
Mr. Silva presented a memorandum from SDS, Inc. which will serve as a reminder that beginning 
January 1, 2024, elected and appointed commissioners of community redevelopment agencies and 
local officers of independent special districts are required to complete four (4) hours of ethics 
training annually. The training must address, at a minimum, s. 8, Art. II of the Florida Constitution 
(ethics for public officers and financial disclosure), the Code of Ethics for Public Officers and 
Employees, and the Florida Public Records Law and Open Meetings laws. 
 

3. Discussion Regarding Expansion of Lanes on 248th Street and 117th Avenue 
 
Mr. Handal stated that he would like an update regarding the expansion of roads located along SW 
248th Street and SW 117th Avenue. Mr. Silva stated that the aforementioned roads are outside of the 
District boundaries and he would have District Field Operations Staff contact the Miami-Dade 
County Department of Transportation for an update.    
 

4. Discussion Regarding Adding Turnpike Sound Wall and Street Lights on 112th 
Avenue 

 
Mr. Handal asked if it was possible to add a sound barrier wall along the southern portion of the 
District bordering the Turnpike. Mr. Silva stated that the sound barrier wall request is usually made 
by Florida Department of Transportation and he would have District Field Operations Staff contact 
the Florida Department of Transportation for an update.    
  
L. ADMINISTRATIVE & OPERATIONAL MATTERS 
 
Mr. Silva advised the Board that the two (2) seats whose terms are expiring in November 2024 are 
Seat #1 (Monica Encinas) and Seat #2 (Charles Handal). Mr. Silva further explained that the 
qualifying period to run for the District election on the general election ballot would be from noon 
on June 10, 2024, through noon on June 14, 2024.  

Page 3



 
M. BOARD MEMBER & STAFF CLOSING COMMENTS 
 
There were no board member or staff closing comments. 
 
N. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Patterson, 
seconded by Mr. Handal and passed unanimously to adjourn the Regular Board Meeting at 
approximately 7:06 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 

___________________________                      _____________________________ 
   Secretary/Assistant Secretary                      Chairperson/Vice-Chairperson 

Page 4



AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION
Account # Order Number Identification Order PO Amount Cols Depth

142125 559569 Print Legal Ad-IPL01764430 - IPL0176443 $1,227.71 2 42 L

larcher@sdsinc.org

Laura J. ArcherAttention:

Special District Services, Inc.
2501A Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410

PUBLISHED DAILY
MIAMI-DADE-FLORIDA

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared:
Mary Castro, who on oath says that he/she is CUSTODIAN
OF RECORDS of The Miami Herald, a daily newspaper
published at Miami in Miami-Dade County, Florida; that
the attached copy of the advertisement that was
published was published in said newspaper in the issue
(s) of:
Publication: Miami Herald

2 insertion(s) published on:

06/05/24, 06/12/24

Affiant further says that the said Miami Herald is a
newspaper published at Miami, in the said Miami-Dade
County, Florida and that the said newspaper has
heretofore been continuously published in said Dade
County, Florida each day and has been entered a second
class mail matter at the post office in Miami, in said
Miami-Dade County, Florida, for a period of one year
next preceding the first publication of the attached copy
of advertisement; and affiant further says that he/she
has neither paid or promised any person, firm or
corporation any discount, rebate, commission or refund
for the purpose of securing this advertisement for
publication in the said newspaper(s).The McClatchy
Company complies with all legal requirements for
publication in chapter 50, Florida Statutes.

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 12th day of
June in the year of 2024

Notary Public in and for the state of Texas, residing in
Dallas County

Extra charge for lost or duplicate affidavits.
Legal document please do not destroy!

Page 5



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-02 
 

      A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COCO 
PALMS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING 
AND ADOPTING A FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 FINAL BUDGET 
INCLUDING NON-AD VALOREM SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 
PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 190, FLORIDA STATUTES; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 

            WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of the Coco Palms Community 
Development District (the “District”) has prepared a Proposed Budget and Final Special 
Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2024/2025 and has held a duly advertised Public Hearing to 
receive public comments on the Proposed Budget and Final Special Assessment Roll; and  

 
            WHEREAS, following the Public Hearing and the adoption of the Proposed Budget and 
Final Assessment Roll, the District is now authorized to levy non-ad valorem assessments upon 
the properties within the District. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE COCO PALMS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, THAT:  
 

                Section 1. The Final Budget and Final Special Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 
2024/2025 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted, and the assessments set forth 
therein shall be levied. 
 
 Section 2. The Secretary and/or Assistant Secretary of the District is authorized to 
execute any and all necessary transmittals, certifications or other acknowledgements or writings, 
as necessary, to comply with the intent of this Resolution. 
  

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 24th day of June, 2024. 
 

 
ATTEST: COCO PALMS 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 
 

Page 6



  Coco Palms
 Community Development District

      Final Budget For
      Fiscal Year 2024/2025

     October 1, 2024 - September 30, 2025

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-03 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COCO 
PALMS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, ESTABLISHING 
A REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 
AND SETTING THE TIME AND LOCATION OF SAID DISTRICT 
MEETINGS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Coco Palms Community Development District (the 

"District") to establish a regular meeting schedule for fiscal year 2024/2025; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District has set a regular meeting schedule, 

location and time for District meetings for fiscal year 2024/2025 which is attached hereto and 

made a part hereof as Exhibit “A”. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

OF THE COCO PALMS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, MIAMI-DADE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The above recitals are hereby adopted. 

 
Section 2. The regular meeting schedule, time and location for meetings for fiscal 

year 2024/2025 which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby adopted and authorized to be 

published. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 24th day of June, 2024. 

 

 
ATTEST: COCO PALMS 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:                                                                       By:                
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 

Page 14



COCO PALMS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of the Coco Palms 
Community Development District (the “District”) will hold Regular Meetings at Artesa 
Clubhouse located at 11690 SW 248th Street, Homestead, Florida 33032 at 6:30 p.m. on the 
following dates: 
 

October 28, 2024 
November 25, 2024 
February 24, 2025 

March 24, 2025 
April 28, 2025 
May 26, 2025 
June 23, 2025 
July 28, 2025 

August 25, 2025 
 

The purpose of the meetings is for the Board to consider any District business which may 
lawfully and properly come before the Board. Meetings are open to the public and will be 
conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law for community development 
districts.  Copies of the Agenda for any of the meetings may be obtained from the District’s 
website or by contacting the District Manager at 786-313-3661 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-
4922, prior to the date of the particular meeting. 
 
From time to time one or two Board members may participate by telephone; therefore, a speaker 
telephone will be present at the meeting location so that Board members may be fully informed 
of the discussions taking place. Said meeting(s) may be continued as found necessary to a time 
and place specified on the record. 
 
If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at these 
meetings, such person will need a record of the proceedings and such person may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made at his or her own expense and which record 
includes the testimony and evidence on which the appeal is based. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring 
special accommodations or an interpreter to participate at any of these meetings should contact 
the District Manager at 786-313-3661 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922 at least seven (7) days 
prior to the date of the particular meeting. 
 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time with no advertised notice. 
 
COCO PALMS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
www.cocopalmscdd.org 
 
PUBLISH:  MIAMI DAILY BUSINESS REVIEW 00/00/2024 

Page 15


	Coco Palms Community Development District - June 24, 2024 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	March 25, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Public Hearing
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2024-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Final Budget

	Consider Resolution No. 2024-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Meeting Schedule




